SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

FORM 424B3

Prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3)

Filing Date: **2005-05-02 SEC Accession No.** 0001193125-05-092434

(HTML Version on secdatabase.com)

FILER

| PXP Louisiana L.L.C. CIK:1322008 IRS No.: 202076470 State of Incorp.:DE Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 424B3 Act: 33 File No.: 333-121452-13 Film No.: 05791559 | Mailing Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 | Business Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 (713) 579-6000 |
|--|--|---|
| Plains Louisiana Inc. CIK:1322007 IRS No.: 202076518 State of Incorp.:DE Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 424B3 Act: 33 File No.: 333-121452-12 Film No.: 05791560 | Mailing Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 | Business Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 (713) 579-6000 |
| PXP Texas Limited Partnership CIK:1300848 IRS No.: 752836792 State of Incorp.:TX Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 424B3 Act: 33 File No.: 333-121452-11 Film No.: 05791564 | Mailing Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 | Business Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 832-239-6000 |
| Nuevo International Inc. CIK:1300844 IRS No.: 760577836 State of Incorp.:DE Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 424B3 Act: 33 File No.: 333-121452-03 Film No.: 05791567 | Mailing Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 | Business Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 832-239-6000 |
| Nuevo Ghana Inc. CIK:1300843 IRS No.: 760608465 State of Incorp.:DE Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 424B3 Act: 33 File No.: 333-121452-04 Film No.: 05791568 | Mailing Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 | Business Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 832-239-6000 |
| ARGUELLO INC CIK:1099334 IRS No.: 760608465 State of Incorp.:DE Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 424B3 Act: 33 File No.: 333-121452-05 Film No.: 05791570 | Mailing Address 500 DALLAS STREET, STE. 700 500 DALLAS STREET, STE. 700 HOUSTON TX 77022 | Business Address 500 DALLAS STREET, STE. 700 SUITE 700 HOUSTON TX 77002 7136541414 |
| Nuevo Resources Inc. CIK:1300849 IRS No.: 752778316 State of Incorp.:DE Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 424B3 Act: 33 File No.: 333-121452-10 Film No.: 05791563 | Mailing Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 | Business Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 832-239-6000 |
| Nuevo Offshore CO | Mailing Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 | Business Address 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 |

CIK:1300846| IRS No.: 010628961 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231 832-239-6000 Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-121452-02 | Film No.: 05791566 **Business Address PXP GULF COAST INC** 500 DALLAS CIK:1226085| IRS No.: 010770800 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231 SUITE 700 HOUSTON TX 77002 Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-121452-06 | Film No.: 05791569 7137396740 Mailing Address **Business Address** PLAINS RESOURCES INTERNATIONAL INC 1600 ŠMITH STREET 1600 SMITH STREET CIK:891451 | IRS No.: 760040974 | State of Incorp.:DE **HOUSTON TX 77002 HOUSTON TX 77002** Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-121452-07 | Film No.: 05791571 SIC: 5172 Petroleum & petroleum products (no bulk stations) Mailing Address **Business Address** PLAINS EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION CO 700 MILAM STREET 700 MILAM STREET CIK:891456| IRS No.: 330430755 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231 SUITE 3100 SUITE 3100 Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-121452 | Film No.: 05791558 **HOUSTON TX 77002** HOUSTON TX 77002 8322396000 SIC: 1311 Crude petroleum & natural gas Mailing Address **Business Address** 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 HOUSTON TX 77002 HOUSTON TX 77002 832-239-6000

PXP Permian Inc. CIK:1300847| IRS No.: 912116322 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231 Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-121452-01 | Film No.: 05791565 Mailing Address **Business Address Pacific Interstate Offshore CO** 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 CIK:1300872| IRS No.: 953685016 | State of Incorp.:CA | Fiscal Year End: 1231 HOUSTON TX 77002 **HOUSTON TX 77002** Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-121452-08 | Film No.: 05791561 832-239-6000 Mailing Address **Business Address PXP Texas Inc.** 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 700 MILAM, SUITE 3100 CIK:1300850| IRS No.: 752744301 | State of Incorp.:DE | Fiscal Year End: 1231 HOUSTON TX 77002 **HOUSTON TX 77002** 832-239-6000 Type: 424B3 | Act: 33 | File No.: 333-121452-09 | Film No.: 05791562

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) Registration No. 333-121452

PROSPECTUS

(Plains Exploration & Production Company LOGO)

\$500,000,000

Plains Exploration & Production Company

DEBT SECURITIES
GUARANTEES OF DEBT SECURITIES
COMMON STOCK
PREFERRED STOCK
DEPOSITARY SHARES
SECURITIES WARRANTS
STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS
STOCK PURCHASE UNITS

We may offer, from time to time, in one or more series:

unsecured senior debt securities;

unsecured subordinated debt securities:

guarantees, if any, of our payment obligations under any debt securities, given by one or more of our subsidiaries named in this prospectus;

shares of common stock;

shares of preferred stock;

depositary shares;

securities warrants;

stock purchase contracts; and/or

stock purchase units.

The aggregate initial public offering price of all securities offered under this prospectus will not exceed \$500,000,000. The securities:

will be offered at prices and on terms to be set forth in an accompanying prospectus supplement;

may be denominated in U.S. dollars or in other currencies or currency units;

may be offered separately or together, or in separate series; and

may be listed on a national securities exchange, if specified in an accompanying prospectus supplement.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities that may be offered. Each time securities are sold, we will provide one or more supplements to this prospectus that contain more specific information about the offering and the terms of the securities being offered. The supplements may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. This prospectus may not be used to offer or sell securities without a prospectus supplement describing the method and terms of the offering.

You should carefully read this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement before you invest in any of our securities. You should carefully consider information under the headings "Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" on page ii and "Risk Factors" referred to on page 1 of this prospectus before you make an investment in our securities.

Plains Exploration & Production Company's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "PXP."

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Notice to New Hampshire Residents

Neither the fact that a registration statement or an application for a license has been filed under RSA 421-B with the State of New Hampshire nor the fact that a security is effectively registered or a person is licensed in the State of New Hampshire constitutes a finding by the Secretary of State that any document filed under RSA 421-B is true, complete and not misleading. Neither any such fact nor the fact that an exemption or exception is available for a security or a transaction means that the Secretary of State has

| provisions of this paragraph. | |
|-------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| | This prospectus is dated May 2, 2005. |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | PAGE |
|--|------|
| About This Prospectus | i |
| Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements | ii |
| About Plains Exploration | 1 |
| Risk Factors | 1 |
| <u>Use of Proceeds</u> | 1 |
| Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges | 1 |
| Description of Debt Securities | 2 |
| Description of Guarantees of Debt Securities | 14 |
| Description of Plains Exploration Capital Stock | 15 |
| Description of Depositary Shares of Plains Exploration. | 18 |
| Description of Securities Warrants of Plains Exploration. | 20 |
| Description of Stock Purchase Contracts and Stock Purchase Units of Plains Exploration | 21 |
| Plan of Distribution | 21 |
| <u>Legal Matters</u> | 23 |
| <u>Experts</u> | 23 |

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which we refer to as the "SEC," using a "shelf" registration process. Under this shelf registration process, we may, over time, offer and sell any combination of the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings up to a total dollar amount of \$500,000,000. This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities we may offer. Each time we offer securities, we will provide one or more prospectus supplements that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering. A prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. Any statement that we make in this prospectus will be modified or superseded by any inconsistent statement made by us in a prospectus supplement. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with the additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information" beginning on page 24.

Unless the context requires otherwise or unless otherwise noted, all references in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement to "Plains Exploration" and to the "company," "we," "us" or "our" are to Plains Exploration & Production Company and its subsidiaries.

i

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This prospectus includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act, Section 21E of the Exchange Act, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 about us that are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this prospectus are forward-looking statements. Statements that are predictive in nature, that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, or that include words such as "will," "would," "should," "plans," "likely," "expects," "anticipates," "intends," "believes," "estimates," "thinks," "may," and similar expressions, are forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results and performance to be materially different from any future results or performance expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors include, among other things, those matters discussed under the caption "Risk Factors," as well as the following:

uncertainties inherent in the development and production of and exploration for oil and gas and in estimating reserves;

unexpected difficulties in integrating operations as a result of any significant acquisitions, including the recent acquisition of Nuevo Energy Company;

unexpected future capital expenditures (including the amount and nature thereof);

the impact of oil and gas price fluctuations;

the effects of our indebtedness, which could adversely restrict our ability to operate, could make us vulnerable to general adverse economic and industry conditions, could place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt, and could have other adverse consequences;

the effects of competition;

the success of our risk management activities;

the availability (or lack thereof) of acquisition or combination opportunities;

the impact of current and future laws and governmental regulations;

environmental liabilities that are not covered by an effective indemnity or insurance; and

general economic, market or business conditions.

All forward-looking statements in this prospectus are made as of the date hereof, and you should not rely on these statements without also considering the risks and uncertainties associated with these statements and our business that are addressed in this prospectus. Moreover, although we believe the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are based upon reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that we will attain these expectations or that any deviations will not be material.

ABOUT PLAINS EXPLORATION

We are an independent oil and gas company engaged in the activities of acquiring, developing, exploiting and producing oil and gas properties in the United States. We own oil and gas properties in five states with principal operations in:

The Los Angeles and San Joaquin Basins onshore California;

The Santa Maria Basin offshore California;

The Gulf Coast Basin onshore and offshore Louisiana, including the Gulf of Mexico; and

The Val Verde portion of the greater Permian Basin in Texas.

Assets in our principal focus areas include mature properties with long-lived reserves and significant development and exploitation opportunities as well as newer properties with development, exploitation and exploration potential. We have historically hedged portions of our oil and gas production to manage our exposure to commodity price risk.

Our principal executive offices are located at 700 Milam, Suite 3100, Houston, Texas 77002, and our telephone number is (713) 579-6000. We maintain a website on the Internet at http://www.plainsxp.com. Unless specifically incorporated by reference in this prospectus, information that you may find on the website is not part of this prospectus.

RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risk factors described under the caption "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 and other documents we have filed with the SEC before investing in our securities. You should also consider similar information contained in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K and other documents we file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless indicated otherwise in a prospectus supplement, we expect to use the net proceeds from the sale of the securities offered pursuant to this prospectus and any prospectus supplement for general corporate purposes. These purposes may include, but are not limited to:

reduction or refinancing of debt or other corporate obligations;

acquisitions;

capital expenditures; and

working capital.

Any specific allocation of the net proceeds of an offering of securities to a specific purpose will be determined at the time of the offering and will be described in a prospectus supplement.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Our consolidated ratio of earnings to fixed charges and proforma ratio of earnings to fixed charges for each of the periods indicated are as follows:

| Vear | Ended | December | · 31. |
|------|-------|----------|-------|

| | Proforma | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|----------|-----|---------|------|------|------|------|
| | 2004 (a |) | 2004 | 2003 | 2002 | 2001 | 2000 |
| Ratio of earnings to fixed charges | 0.7 | (b) | 0.9 (c) | 3.8 | 2.8 | 5.2 | 3.1 |

- (a) Adjusted to give effect to (1) the acquisition of Nuevo Energy Company effective May 14, 2004; (2) the sale of \$250.0 million of 7.125% senior notes and the application of the net proceeds thereof and borrowings under our credit facility for the termination of Nuevo's credit facility and certain other recapitalization transactions; and (3) the sale of Nuevo's operations in The Republic of Congo, which was completed on July 30, 2004.
- (b) Total fixed charges exceed total adjusted earnings available for payment of fixed charges by \$15.1 million. Total adjusted earnings available for payment of fixed charges include a \$168.2 million loss on derivatives that did not qualify for hedge accounting.
- (c) Total fixed charges exceed total adjusted earnings available for payment of fixed charges by \$5.0 million. Total adjusted earnings available for payment of fixed charges include a \$150.3 million loss on derivatives that did not qualify for hedge accounting.

As of the date of this prospectus and each of the periods presented, there were no outstanding shares of preferred stock.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES

The Debt Securities will be either senior debt securities of Plains Exploration ("Senior Debt Securities") or subordinated debt securities of Plains Exploration ("Subordinated Debt Securities"). The Senior Debt Securities and the Subordinated Debt Securities will be issued under one or more Indentures between Plains Exploration and a U.S. banking institution selected by Plains Exploration as "Trustee." Senior Debt Securities will be issued under a "Senior Indenture" and Subordinated Debt Securities will be issued under a "Subordinated Indenture." Collectively, the Senior Indentures and the Subordinated Indentures are called "Indentures." The Debt Securities may be issued from time to time in one or more series.

We have summarized the material provisions of the Indentures below. We have filed the forms of each Indenture with the SEC as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, and you should read such documents for provisions that may be important to you. In the summary below, we have included references to section numbers of the applicable Indentures so that you can easily locate these provisions. Whenever we refer in this prospectus or in the prospectus supplement to particular sections or defined terms of an Indenture, such sections or defined terms are incorporated by reference herein or therein, as applicable. Capitalized terms used in this summary have the meanings specified in the Indentures.

GENERAL

The Indentures provide that Debt Securities in separate series may be issued thereunder from time to time without limitation as to aggregate principal amount. Plains Exploration may specify a maximum aggregate principal amount for the Debt Securities of any series (Section 301). Plains Exploration will determine the terms and conditions of the Debt Securities, including the maturity, principal and interest, but those terms must be consistent with the applicable Indenture. The Debt Securities will be Plains Exploration's unsecured obligations.

The Subordinated Debt Securities will be subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all of Plains Exploration's Senior Debt (as defined) as described under "Subordination of Subordinated Debt Securities" in this prospectus and in the prospectus supplement applicable to any Subordinated Debt Securities.

If the prospectus supplement so indicates, the Senior or Subordinated Debt Securities of Plains Exploration will be convertible into Plains Exploration's common stock as described in the prospectus supplement.

Our payment obligations under any Debt Securities may, if specified in any prospectus supplement, be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by our subsidiaries: Arguello Inc., Nuevo Ghana Inc., Nuevo International Inc., Nuevo Offshore Company, PXP Permian Inc., PXP Texas Limited Partnership, Nuevo Resources Inc., PXP Texas Inc., Pacific Interstate Offshore Company, Plains Resources International Inc., PXP Gulf Coast Inc., Plains Louisiana Inc. and PXP Louisiana L.L.C. If any series of Debt Securities is guaranteed by such subsidiary, the applicable prospectus supplement will identify each subsidiary guarantor and describe such subsidiary guarantee, including the circumstances in which it may be released. Any guarantee of Debt Securities by a subsidiary guarantor may be on a full and unconditional basis or may be limited as described on page 14 under "Description of Guarantees of Debt Securities."

The applicable prospectus supplement will set forth the price or prices at which the Debt Securities to be offered will be issued and will describe the following terms of such Debt Securities:

- (1) the title of the Debt Securities;
- (2) whether the Debt Securities are Senior Debt Securities or Subordinated Debt Securities and, if Subordinated Debt Securities, the related subordination terms;
 - (3) any limit on the aggregate principal amount and authorized denominations of the Debt Securities;
 - (4) the Person to whom any interest on a Debt Security will be payable;
 - (5) the dates on which the principal of the Debt Securities will be payable;
- (6) the rate or rates at which the Debt Securities will bear interest, or the method of determining the rate or rates and the dates from which interest shall accrue and the interest payment dates for the Debt Securities;
 - (7) the places where payments on the Debt Securities will be payable;
- (8) whether the Debt Securities are convertible into, or exchangeable for, securities or other property of Plains Exploration and, if so, the terms and conditions upon which conversion will be effected, including the initial conversion price and any adjustments thereto, the conversion period and other conversion provisions;
 - (9) any provisions that provide for the redemption of the Debt Securities at our option;
- (10) any sinking fund or other provisions that would obligate Plains Exploration to repurchase or otherwise redeem the Debt Securities:
- (11) if other than U.S. dollars, the currency, currencies or currency units for which the Debt Securities may be purchased and in which the principal, any premium and any interest may be payable;
- (12) if the currency, currencies or currency units for which the Debt Securities may be purchased or in which the principal, any premium and any interest may be payable is at Plains Exploration's election or the purchaser's election, the manner in which the election may be made;
- (13) if the amount of payments on the Debt Securities is determined by an index based on one or more currencies or currency units, or changes in the price of one or more securities or commodities, the manner in which the amounts may be determined;
 - (14) whether the Debt Securities are defeasible;
- (15) the portion of the principal amount, if less than all, of the Debt Securities that will be payable upon declaration of acceleration of the Maturity of the Debt Securities;
 - (16) any addition to or change in the Events of Default;
 - (17) any addition to or change in the covenants in the Indenture applicable to any of the Debt Securities;
 - (18) whether the Debt Securities are issued together with other securities of Plains Exploration or an affiliated issuer as a unit; and
 - (19) any other terms of the Debt Securities not inconsistent with the provisions of the Indenture. (Section 301)

Debt Securities may be sold at a substantial discount below their principal amount. Special United States federal income tax considerations applicable to Debt Securities sold at an original issue discount may be

described in the applicable prospectus supplement. In addition, special United States federal income tax or other considerations applicable to any Debt Securities that are denominated in a currency or currency unit other than United States dollars may be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

If Plains Exploration sells any of the Debt Securities for one or more foreign currencies or foreign currency units or if the principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any series of Debt Securities will be payable in one or more foreign currencies or foreign currency units, it will describe the restrictions, elections, federal income tax consequences, specific terms and other information with respect to the issue of Debt Securities and the currencies or currency units in the related prospectus supplement.

SUBORDINATION OF SUBORDINATED DEBT SECURITIES

The indebtedness evidenced by the Subordinated Debt Securities will, to the extent set forth in the Subordinated Indenture with respect to each series of Subordinated Debt Securities, be subordinate in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all of Plains Exploration's Senior Debt, including the Senior Debt Securities, and it may also be senior in right of payment to all of Plains Exploration's Subordinated Debt. The prospectus supplement relating to any Subordinated Debt Securities will summarize the subordination provisions of the Subordinated Indenture applicable to that series including:

the applicability and effect of such provisions upon any payment or distribution of Plains Exploration's assets to creditors upon any liquidation, dissolution, winding-up, reorganization, assignment for the benefit of creditors or marshaling of assets or any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar proceedings;

the applicability and effect of such provisions in the event of specified defaults with respect to any Senior Debt, including the circumstances under which and the periods in which Plains Exploration will be prohibited from making payments on the Subordinated Debt Securities; and

the definition of Senior Debt applicable to the Subordinated Debt Securities of that series and, if the series is issued on a senior subordinated basis, the definition of Subordinated Debt applicable to that series.

The prospectus supplement will also describe as of a recent date the approximate amount of Senior Debt to which the Subordinated Debt Securities of that series will be subordinated.

The failure to make any payment on any of the Subordinated Debt Securities by reason of the subordination provisions of the Subordinated Indenture described in the prospectus supplement will not be construed as preventing the occurrence of an Event of Default with respect to the Subordinated Debt Securities arising from any such failure to make payment.

The subordination provisions described above will not be applicable to payments in respect of the Subordinated Debt Securities from a defeasance trust established in connection with any defeasance or covenant defeasance of the Subordinated Debt Securities as described under "Satisfaction and Discharge of the Indentures; Defeasance" in this prospectus.

FORM, EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER

The Debt Securities of each series will be issuable only in registered form, without coupons, and, unless otherwise specified in the applicable Indenture, only in denominations of \$1,000 and integral multiples thereof. (Section 302)

At the option of the Holder, subject to the terms of the applicable Indenture and the limitations applicable to Global Securities, Debt Securities of each series will be exchangeable for other Debt Securities of the same series of any authorized denomination and of a like tenor and aggregate principal amount. (Section 305)

Subject to the terms of the applicable Indenture and the limitations applicable to Global Securities, Debt Securities may be presented for exchange as provided above or for registration of transfer (duly endorsed or accompanied by a duly executed written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to Plains Exploration) at the office of the Security Registrar or at the office of any transfer agent designated by Plains Exploration for such purpose. No service charge will be made for any registration of transfer or exchange of Debt Securities, but Plains Exploration may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection therewith. Such transfer or exchange will be effected upon the Security Registrar or such transfer agent, as the case may be, being satisfied with the documents of title and identity of the person making the request. The Security Registrar and any other transfer agent initially designated by Plains Exploration for any Debt Securities will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement. (Section 305) Plains Exploration may at any time designate additional transfer agents or rescind the designation of any transfer agent or approve a change in the office through which any transfer agent acts, except that Plains Exploration will be required to maintain a transfer agent in each Place of Payment for the Debt Securities of each series. (Section 1002)

If the Debt Securities of any series (or of any series and specified terms) are to be redeemed in part, Plains Exploration will not be required to (i) issue, register the transfer of or exchange any Debt Security of that series (or of that series and specified terms, as the case may be) during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days before the day of mailing of a notice of redemption of any such Debt Security that may be selected for redemption and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (ii) register the transfer of or exchange any Debt Security so selected for redemption, in whole or in part, except the unredeemed portion of any such Debt Security being redeemed in part. (Section 305)

GLOBAL SECURITIES

Some or all of the Debt Securities of any series may be represented, in whole or in part, by one or more Global Securities that will have an aggregate principal amount equal to that of the Debt Securities represented thereby. Each Global Security will be registered in the name of a Depositary or its nominee identified in the applicable prospectus supplement, will be deposited with such Depositary or nominee or its custodian and will bear a legend regarding the restrictions on exchanges and registration of transfer thereof referred to below and any such other matters as may be provided for pursuant to the applicable Indenture.

Notwithstanding any provision of the Indentures or any Debt Security described in this prospectus, no Global Security may be exchanged in whole or in part for Debt Securities registered, and no transfer of a Global Security in whole or in part may be registered, in the name of any person other than the Depositary for such Global Security or any nominee of such Depositary unless:

- (1) the Depositary has notified Plains Exploration that it is unwilling or unable to continue as Depositary for such Global Security or has ceased to be qualified to act as such as required by the applicable Indenture and a successor depositary is not appointed within 90 days;
- (2) an Event of Default with respect to the Debt Securities represented by such Global Security has occurred and is continuing and the Security Registrar has received a written request from the Depositary to issue certificated Debt Securities; or
- (3) other circumstances exist, in addition to or in lieu of those described above, as may be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

All Debt Securities issued in exchange for a Global Security or any portion thereof will be registered in such names as the Depositary may direct. (Section 204)

As long as the Depositary, or its nominee, is the registered Holder of a Global Security, the Depositary or such nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner and Holder of such Global Security and the Debt Securities that it represents for all purposes under the Debt Securities and the applicable Indenture. Except in the limited circumstances referred to above, owners of beneficial interests in a Global Security will not be

entitled to have such Global Security or any Debt Securities that it represents registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of certificated Debt Securities in exchange therefor and will not be considered to be the owners or Holders of such Global Security or any Debt Securities that it represents for any purpose under the Debt Securities or the applicable Indenture. All payments on a Global Security will be made to the Depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, as the Holder of the security. The laws of some jurisdictions require that some purchasers of Debt Securities take physical delivery of such Debt Securities in definitive form. These laws may impair the ability to transfer beneficial interests in a Global Security.

Ownership of beneficial interests in a Global Security will be limited to institutions that have accounts with the Depositary or its nominee ("participants") and to persons that may hold beneficial interests through participants. In connection with the issuance of any Global Security, the Depositary will credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system, the respective principal amounts of Debt Securities represented by the Global Security to the accounts of its participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in a Global Security will be shown only on, and the transfer of those ownership interests will be effected only through, records maintained by the Depositary (with respect to participants" interests) or any such participant (with respect to interests of persons held by such participants on their behalf). Payments, transfers, exchanges and other matters relating to beneficial interests in a Global Security may be subject to various policies and procedures adopted by the Depositary from time to time. None of Plains Exploration, the Trustee or the agents of Plains Exploration or the Trustee will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the Depositary's or any participant's records relating to, or for payments made on account of, beneficial interests in a Global Security, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial interests.

PAYMENT AND PAYING AGENTS

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, payment of interest on a Debt Security on any Interest Payment Date will be made to the Person in whose name such Debt Security (or one or more Predecessor Debt Securities) is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such interest. (Section 307)

Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, principal of and any premium and interest on the Debt Securities of a particular series will be payable at the office of such Paying Agent or Paying Agents as Plains Exploration may designate for such purpose from time to time, except that at Plains Exploration's option payment of any interest may be made by check mailed to the address of the Person entitled thereto as such address appears in the Security Register. Unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, the corporate trust office of the Trustee under the Senior Indentures in The City of New York will be designated as sole Paying Agent for payments with respect to Senior Debt Securities of each series, and the corporate trust office of the Trustee under the Subordinated Indentures in The City of New York will be designated as the sole Paying Agent for payment with respect to Subordinated Debt Securities of each series. Any other Paying Agents initially designated by Plains Exploration for the Debt Securities of a particular series will be named in the applicable prospectus supplement. Plains Exploration may at any time designate additional Paying Agents or rescind the designation of any Paying Agent or approve a change in the office through which any Paying Agent acts, except that Plains Exploration will be required to maintain a Paying Agent in each Place of Payment for the Debt Securities of a particular series. (Section 1002)

All moneys paid by Plains Exploration to a Paying Agent for the payment of the principal of or any premium or interest on any Debt Security that remain unclaimed at the end of two years after such principal, premium or interest has become due and payable will be repaid to Plains Exploration and the Holder of such Debt Security thereafter may look only to Plains Exploration or a subsidiary guarantor, if any, for payment thereof. (Section 1003)

CONSOLIDATION, MERGER AND SALE OF ASSETS

Plains Exploration may not consolidate with or merge into, or transfer, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its assets to, any Person (a "successor Person"), and may not permit any Person to consolidate with or merge into it, unless:

- (1) in a transaction in which Plains Exploration is not the successor Person, the successor Person (if any) is a corporation, partnership, trust or other entity organized and validly existing under the laws of any domestic jurisdiction and expressly assumes Plains Exploration's obligations on the Debt Securities and under the Indentures;
- (2) immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no Event of Default, and no event that, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing; and
- (3) any other conditions with respect to any particular Debt Securities specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, are met. (Section 801)

EVENTS OF DEFAULT

Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement, each of the following will constitute an Event of Default under the applicable Indenture with respect to Debt Securities of any series:

- (1) Plains Exploration and any guarantor fail to pay any interest on any Debt Securities of that series when due, continued for 90 days, whether or not, in the case of Subordinated Debt Securities, such payment is prohibited by the subordination provisions of the Subordinated Indenture;
- (2) Plains Exploration and any guarantor fail to pay principal of or any premium on any Debt Security of that series when due, whether or not, in the case of Subordinated Debt Securities, such payment is prohibited by the subordination provisions of the Subordinated Indenture;
- (3) Plains Exploration and any guarantor fail to deposit any sinking fund payment, when due, in respect of any Debt Security of that series, whether or not, in the case of Subordinated Debt Securities, such deposit is prohibited by the subordination provisions of the Subordinated Indenture;
- (4) Plains Exploration fails to perform any of its other covenants in such Indenture (other than a covenant included in such Indenture solely for the benefit of a series other than that series), continued for 90 days after written notice has been given by the applicable Trustee, or the Holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities of that series, as provided in such Indenture; and
 - (5) certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization affecting Plains Exploration. (Section 501)

If an Event of Default (other than an Event of Default described in clause (5) above) with respect to the Debt Securities of any series at the time Outstanding shall occur and be continuing, either the applicable Trustee or the Holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities of that series by notice as provided in the Indenture may declare the principal amount of the Debt Securities of that series (or, in the case of any Debt Security that is an Original Issue Discount Debt Security, such portion of the principal amount of such Debt Security as may be specified in the terms of such Debt Security) to be due and payable immediately. If an Event of Default described in clause (5) above with respect to the Debt Securities of any series at the time Outstanding shall occur and be continuing, either the applicable Trustee or the Holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities by notice as provided in the Indenture may declare the principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities (or, in the case of any Debt Security that is an Original Issue Discount Debt Security, such portion of the principal amount of such Debt Security as may be specified in the terms of such Debt Security) to be due and payable immediately. After any such acceleration, but before a judgment or decree based on acceleration, the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities of that series may, under certain circumstances, rescind and annul such acceleration

if (1) Plains Exploration has paid or deposited with the Trustee an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, on any Debt Securities of that series that have become due other than by declaration of acceleration, all overdue interest on such Debt Securities, interest on any overdue interest (if lawful), any amounts paid by the Trustee under the applicable Indenture and the reasonable compensation and expenses of the Trustee and (2) all Events of Default, other than the non-payment of accelerated principal (or other specified amount), have been cured or waived as provided in the applicable Indenture. (Section 502) For information as to waiver of defaults, see "Modification and Waiver" below

Subject to the provisions of the Indentures relating to the duties of the Trustee in case an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, each Trustee will be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the applicable Indenture at the request or direction of any of the Holders, unless such Holders shall have offered to such Trustee reasonable indemnity. (Section 603) Subject to such provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee, the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities of any series will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or exercising any trust or power conferred on the Trustee with respect to the Debt Securities of that series. (Section 512)

No Holder of a Debt Security of any series will have any right to institute any proceeding with respect to the applicable Indenture, or for the appointment of a receiver or a trustee, or for any other remedy thereunder, unless:

- (1) such Holder has previously given to the Trustee under the applicable Indenture written notice of a continuing Event of Default with respect to the Debt Securities of that series;
- (2) the Holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities of that series have made written request, and such Holder or Holders have offered reasonable indemnity, to the Trustee to institute such proceeding as trustee; and
- (3) the Trustee has failed to institute such proceeding, and has not received from the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities of that series a direction inconsistent with such request, within 60 days after such notice, request and offer. (Section 507)

However, such limitations do not apply to a suit instituted by a Holder of a Debt Security for the enforcement of payment of the principal of or any premium or interest on such Debt Security on or after the applicable due date specified in such Debt Security or, if applicable, to convert such Debt Security. (Section 508)

Plains Exploration and the guarantors, if any, each will be required to furnish to each Trustee annually a written statement by certain of such entity's officers as to whether or not Plains Exploration, to their knowledge, is in default in the performance or observance of any of the terms, provisions and conditions of the applicable Indenture and, if so, specifying all such known defaults. (Section 1004)

MODIFICATION AND WAIVER

Modifications and amendments of an Indenture may be made by Plains Exploration and the applicable Trustee with the consent of the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities of each series affected by such modification or amendment; provided, however, that no such modification or amendment may, without the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Debt Security affected thereby:

- (1) change the Maturity of the principal of, or the Stated Maturity of any premium on, or any installment of principal of or interest on, any Debt Security;
 - (2) reduce the principal amount of, or any premium or interest on, any Debt Security;
 - (3) change the method of computing the amount of principal or interest on any date;

| 8 | |
|---|--|
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

(4) reduce the amount of principal of an Original Issue Discount Security or any other Debt Security payable upon acceleration of

the Maturity thereof;

- (5) change the place or currency of payment of principal of, or any premium or interest on, any Debt Security;
- (6) impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on or any conversion right with respect to any Debt Security;
- (7) in the case of Subordinated Debt Securities, modify the subordination or conversion provisions in a manner adverse to the Holders of the Subordinated Debt Securities;
- (8) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Outstanding Debt Securities of any series, the consent of whose Holders is required for modification or amendment of the Indenture;
- (9) reduce the percentage in principal amount of Outstanding Debt Securities of any series necessary for waiver of compliance with certain provisions of the Indenture or for waiver of certain defaults; or
 - (10) modify such provisions with respect to modification and waiver. (Section 902)

The Holders of a majority in principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities of any series may waive any past default under the applicable Indenture, except a default in the payment of principal, premium or interest and certain covenants and provisions of the applicable Indenture that cannot be amended without the consent of the Holder of each Outstanding Debt Security of such series affected. (Section 513)

The Indentures provide that in determining whether the Holders of the requisite principal amount of the Outstanding Debt Securities have given or taken any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action under such Indenture as of any date:

- (1) the principal amount of an Original Issue Discount Security that will be deemed to be Outstanding will be the amount of the principal thereof that would be due and payable as of such date upon acceleration of the Maturity thereof to such date; and
- (2) Debt Securities owned by Plains Exploration or any other obligor upon the Debt Securities (or their respective Affiliates) will be disregarded; and
- (3) the principal amount of a Debt Security denominated in one or more foreign currencies or currency units that will be deemed to be Outstanding will be the U.S. dollar equivalent, determined as of such date in the manner prescribed for such Debt Security, of the principal amount of such Debt Security (or, in the case of a Debt Security described in clause (1) or (2) above, of the amount described in such clause).

Certain Debt Securities, including those for whose payment or redemption money has been deposited or set aside in trust for the Holders and those that have been fully defeased pursuant to Section 1202, will not be deemed to be Outstanding. (Section 101)

Except in certain limited circumstances, Plains Exploration will be entitled to set any day as a record date for the purpose of determining the Holders of Outstanding Debt Securities of any series entitled to give or take any direction, notice, consent, waiver or other action under the applicable Indenture, in the manner and subject to the limitations provided in the Indenture. In certain limited circumstances, the Trustee will be entitled to set a record date for action by Holders. If a record date is set for any action to be taken by Holders of a particular series, such action may be taken only by persons who are Holders of Outstanding Debt Securities of that series on the record date. To be effective, such action must be taken by Holders of the requisite principal amount of such Debt Securities within a specified period following the record date. For any particular record date, this period will be six months or such other period as may be specified by Plains Exploration may be (or the Trustee, if it set the record date), and may be shortened or lengthened (but not beyond six months) from time to time. (Section 104)

SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF THE INDENTURES; DEFEASANCE

Satisfaction and Discharge. The Indentures will generally cease to be of any further effect with respect to a series of Debt Securities if Plains Exploration delivers all Debt Securities of that series, with limited exceptions,

for cancellation to the applicable Trustee or all Debt Securities of that series not previously delivered for cancellation to the applicable Trustee have become due and payable or will become due and payable or called for redemption within one year, and Plains Exploration has deposited with the applicable Trustee as trust funds the entire amount sufficient to pay at maturity or upon redemption all the Debt Securities, no default with respect to the Debt Securities has occurred and is continuing on the date of the deposit, and the deposit does not result in a breach or violation of, or default under, the applicable Indenture or any other agreement or instrument to which Plains Exploration is a party.

If and to the extent indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, Plains Exploration may elect, at its option at any time, to have the provisions of Section 1202, relating to defeasance and discharge of indebtedness, or defeasance of certain restrictive covenants applied to the Debt Securities of any series, or to any specified part of a series.

Defeasance. The Indentures provide that, upon Plains Exploration's exercise of its option (if any) of defeasance and discharge applied to any Debt Securities, Plains Exploration and any guarantor will be discharged from all their respective obligations, and, if such Debt Securities are Subordinated Debt Securities, the provisions of the Subordinated Indenture relating to subordination (but not to conversion, if applicable) and the provisions of any Indentures relating to guarantees, if any, will cease to be effective, with respect to such Debt Securities (except for certain obligations to exchange or register the transfer of Debt Securities, to replace stolen, lost or mutilated Debt Securities, to maintain paying agencies and to hold moneys for payment in trust) upon the deposit in trust for the benefit of the Holders of such Debt Securities of money or U.S. Government Obligations, or both, which, through the payment of principal and interest in respect thereof in accordance with their terms, will provide money in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and any premium and interest on such Debt Securities on the respective Stated Maturities or redemption dates, as applicable in accordance with the terms of the applicable Indenture and such Debt Securities. Such defeasance or discharge may occur only if, among other things:

- (1) Plains Exploration has delivered to the applicable Trustee an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that it has received from, or there has been published by, the United States Internal Revenue Service a ruling, or there has been a change in tax law, in either case to the effect that Holders of such Debt Securities will not recognize gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit, defeasance and discharge and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amount, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit, defeasance and discharge were not to occur;
- (2) no Event of Default or event that with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, shall constitute an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing:
- (3) such deposit, defeasance and discharge will not result in a breach or violation of, or constitute a default under, any agreement or instrument to which Plains Exploration is a party or by which such party is bound;
- (4) in the case of Subordinated Debt Securities, at the time of such deposit, no default in the payment of all or a portion of principal of (or premium, if any) or interest on any of Plains Exploration's Senior Debt shall have occurred and be continuing, no event of default shall have resulted in the acceleration of any of Plains Exploration's Senior Debt and no other event of default with respect to any of Plains Exploration's Senior Debt shall have occurred and be continuing permitting after notice or the lapse of time, or both, the acceleration thereof; and
- (5) Plains Exploration has delivered to the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that such deposit shall not cause the Trustee or the trust so created to be subject to the Investment Company Act of 1940. (Sections 1202 and 1203)

Defeasance of Certain Covenants. The Indentures provide that, upon the Issuer's exercise of its option (if any) to have the provisions of the applicable Indenture relating to covenant defeasance applied to any Debt Securities, Plains Exploration may omit to comply with certain restrictive covenants, including those that may be

described in the applicable prospectus supplement, the occurrence of certain Events of Default, which are described above in clause (4) (with respect to such restrictive covenants) and clause (5) under "Events of Default" and any that may be described in the applicable prospectus supplement, will not be deemed to either be or result in an Event of Default and, if such Debt Securities are Subordinated Debt Securities, the provisions of the Subordinated Indenture relating to subordination (but not to conversion, if applicable) will cease to be effective, in each case with respect to such Debt Securities. In order to exercise such option, Plains Exploration must deposit, in trust for the benefit of the Holders of such Debt Securities, money or U.S. Government Obligations, or both, which, through the payment of principal and interest in respect thereof in accordance with their terms, will provide money in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and any premium and interest on such Debt Securities on the respective Stated Maturities or redemption dates, as applicable in accordance with the terms of the applicable Indenture and such Debt Securities.

Such covenant defeasance may occur only if Plains Exploration has delivered to the applicable Trustee an Opinion of Counsel that in effect says that Holders of such Debt Securities will not recognize gain or loss for federal income tax purposes as a result of such deposit and defeasance of certain obligations and will be subject to federal income tax on the same amount, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit and defeasance were not to occur, and the requirements set forth in clauses (2), (3), (4) and (5) above are satisfied. If Plains Exploration exercises this option with respect to any Debt Securities and such Debt Securities were declared due and payable because of the occurrence of any Event of Default, the amount of money and U.S. Government Obligations so deposited in trust would be sufficient to pay amounts due on such Debt Securities at the time of their respective Stated Maturities but may not be sufficient to pay amounts due on such Debt Securities upon any acceleration resulting from such Event of Default. In such case, Plains Exploration would remain liable for such payments.

COVENANTS

The Senior Indenture contains the covenants summarized below, which will be applicable, unless waived or amended, so long as any of the Senior Debt Securities are outstanding, unless stated otherwise in the prospectus supplement.

Limitation on Mortgages. Plains Exploration will not, nor will it permit any Restricted Subsidiary to create, assume or incur

any Mortgage on any stock or indebtedness of any Restricted Subsidiary to secure any Debt of Plains Exploration or any other person, other than the Senior Debt Securities; or

any Mortgage on any Principal Property to secure any Debt of Plains Exploration or any other person, other than the Senior Debt Securities,

without making provision for all the outstanding Senior Debt Securities to be secured equally with the Debt.

Any Mortgage on stock or indebtedness of a corporation existing at the time a corporation becomes a Subsidiary or at the time stock or indebtedness of a Subsidiary is acquired, and, with specific exceptions, any extension, renewal or replacement of any Mortgage, will generally be excluded from this restriction.

The following permitted mortgages will be excluded from the restriction referred to in the preceding paragraph:

any Mortgage on property owned or leased by a corporation existing at the time the corporation becomes a Restricted Subsidiary;

any Mortgage on property existing at the time of its acquisition or to secure payment of any part of the purchase price thereof or any Debt incurred to finance the purchase thereof;

any Mortgage on property to secure any part of the cost of development, construction, alteration, repair or improvement of the property, or Debt incurred to finance the cost;

any Mortgage securing Debt of a Restricted Subsidiary owing to Plains Exploration or to another Restricted Subsidiary;

any Mortgage existing on the date of the Senior Indenture;

any Mortgage on Plains Exploration's property or property of a Restricted Subsidiary in favor of the United States of America or any State or political subdivision thereof, or in favor of any other country or any political subdivision thereof, to secure payment pursuant to any contract or statute or to secure any indebtedness incurred for the purpose of financing all or part of the purchase price or the cost of construction or improvement of the property subject to the Mortgage;

any Mortgage on any property subsequently acquired by Plains Exploration or any Restricted Subsidiary, to secure or provide for the payment of any part of the purchase price of the property, or any Mortgage assumed by Plains Exploration or any Restricted Subsidiary on any property subsequently acquired by Plains Exploration or any Restricted Subsidiary which was existing at the time of the acquisition, provided that the amount of any Indebtedness secured by any Mortgage created or assumed does not exceed the cost to Plains Exploration or any Restricted Subsidiary of the property covered by the Mortgage; and

any extension, renewal or replacement of any Mortgage referred to in the previous seven bullet points, provided that the principal amount of Debt secured thereby may not exceed the principal amount of Debt so secured at the time of the extension, renewal or replacement, and provided that the Mortgage must be limited to all or part of the property which secured the Mortgage so extended, renewed or replaced.

Notwithstanding the above, Plains Exploration may, and may permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, create, assume or incur any Mortgage on any Principal Property without equally securing the Senior Debt Securities if the aggregate amount of all Debt then outstanding secured by the Mortgage and all similar Mortgages does not exceed 10% of Plains Exploration's total consolidated shareholders' equity, including preferred stock, as shown on the audited consolidated balance sheet contained in its latest annual report to shareholders. However, Debt secured by Permitted Mortgages will not be included in the amount of the secured Debt. (Section 1006)

Sale and Leaseback Transactions. Plains Exploration will not, nor will it permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, enter into any sale-leaseback transaction providing for the leasing by Plains Exploration or a Restricted Subsidiary of any Principal Property, except for temporary leases for a term of not more than three years, which has been or is to be sold or transferred by Plains Exploration or the Restricted Subsidiary to the person, unless:

the sale-leaseback transaction occurs within the later of 180 days from the date of acquisition of the Principal Property or the date of the completion of construction or commencement of full operations on the Principal Property, or

within 180 days after the sale-leaseback transaction, Plains Exploration applies or causes to be applied to the retirement of its Funded Debt or the Funded Debt of any Subsidiary, other than its Funded Debt which is subordinate in right of payment to the Senior Debt Securities, an amount not less than the net proceeds of the sale of the Principal Property.

Notwithstanding the above provisions, Plains Exploration may, and may permit any Restricted Subsidiary to, effect any sale-leaseback transaction involving any Principal Property, provided that the net sale proceeds from the sale-leaseback transaction, together with all Debt secured by Mortgages other than Permitted Mortgages, does not exceed 10% of Plains Exploration's total consolidated shareholders' equity as shown on the audited consolidated balance sheet contained in Plains Exploration's latest annual report to shareholders. (Section 1007)

Definitions

For the purposes of the description of the Senior Debt Securities:

"Debt" means indebtedness for money borrowed.

"Funded Debt" of any person means all indebtedness for borrowed money created, incurred, assumed or guaranteed in any manner by the person, and all indebtedness incurred or assumed by the person in connection with the acquisition of any business, property or asset, which in each case matures more than one year after, or which is renewable or extendible or payable out of the proceeds of similar indebtedness incurred pursuant to the terms of any revolving credit agreement or any similar agreement at the option of the person for a period ending more than one year after the date as of which Funded Debt is being determined. However, Funded Debt does not include:

any indebtedness for the payment, redemption or satisfaction of which money, or evidences of indebtedness, if permitted under the instrument creating or evidencing the indebtedness, in the necessary amount has been irrevocably deposited in trust with a trustee or proper depository either on or before the maturity or redemption date thereof;

any indebtedness of the person to any of its Subsidiaries or of any Subsidiary to the person or any other Subsidiary; or

any indebtedness incurred in connection with the financing of operating, construction or acquisition projects, provided that the recourse for the indebtedness is limited to the assets of the projects.

"Mortgage" means any mortgage, pledge, lien, encumbrance, charge or security interest of any kind.

"Principal Property" means proved properties (as such term is defined in Regulation S-X) owned or leased by Plains Exploration or any of its Subsidiaries, unless, in the opinion of Plains Exploration Board of Directors, any of the properties are not in the aggregate of material importance to the total business conducted by Plains Exploration and its Subsidiaries as an entirety.

"Restricted Subsidiary" means any Subsidiary which owns or leases (as lessor or lessee) a Principal Property, but does not include any Subsidiary the principal business of which is leasing machinery, equipment, vehicles or other properties none of which is a Principal Property, or financing accounts receivable, or engaging in ownership and development of any property or assets which is not a Principal Property.

"Subsidiary", when used with respect to Plains Exploration, means any corporation of which a majority of the outstanding voting stock is owned, directly or indirectly, by Plains Exploration or by one or more other Subsidiaries, or both.

NOTICES

Notices to Holders of Debt Securities will be given by mail to the addresses of such Holders as they may appear in the Security Register. (Section 106)

TITLE

Plains Exploration, any guarantor, the Trustee and any agent of Plains Exploration, any guarantor or a Trustee may treat the Person in whose name a Debt Security is registered as the owner of the Debt Security (whether or not such Debt Security may be overdue) for the purpose of making payment and for all other purposes. (Section 308)

TRUSTEES

Plains Exploration may maintain banking and other commercial relationships with any Trustee and its affiliates in the ordinary course of business and any Trustee may own debt securities and serve as Trustee under Plains Exploration's other indentures.

GOVERNING LAW

The Indentures, any guarantees and the Debt Securities will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York. (Section 112)

DESCRIPTION OF GUARANTEES OF DEBT SECURITIES

Our subsidiaries may issue guarantees of debt securities that we offer in any prospectus supplement. A copy of the guarantee will be filed with the SEC in connection with the offering of guarantees. Each guarantee will be issued under an indenture. The prospectus supplement relating to a particular issue of guarantees will describe the terms of those guarantees, including the following:

the series of debt securities to which the guarantees apply;

whether the guarantees are secured or unsecured;

whether the guarantees are conditional or unconditional;

whether the guarantees are senior or subordinate to other guarantees or debt;

the terms under which the guarantees may be amended, modified, waived, released or otherwise terminated, if different from the provisions applicable to the guaranteed debt securities; and

any additional terms of the guarantees.

DESCRIPTION OF PLAINS EXPLORATION CAPITAL STOCK

Pursuant to its certificate of incorporation, Plains Exploration has the authority to issue an aggregate of 155,000,000 shares of capital stock, consisting of 150,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share. On March 21, 2005 Plains Exploration had 77,368,217 shares of common stock outstanding and no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

Selected provisions of Plains Exploration's organizational documents are summarized below, however, you should read the organizational documents for other provisions that may be important to you. In addition, you should be aware that the summary below does not give full effect to the terms of the provisions of statutory or common law which may affect your rights as a stockholder.

COMMON STOCK

Voting rights. Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote in the election of directors and on all other matters submitted to a vote of Plains Exploration's stockholders. Plains Exploration's stockholders do not have the right to cumulate their votes in the election of directors.

Dividends, distributions and stock splits. Holders of Plains Exploration common stock are entitled to receive dividends if, as and when such dividends are declared by Plains Exploration's board out of assets legally available therefor after payment of dividends required to be paid on shares of preferred stock, if any. Plains Exploration's credit facility and the indentures relating to its 8.75% senior subordinated notes and 7 ½% senior notes restrict its ability to pay cash dividends.

Liquidation. In the event of any dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of Plains Exploration's affairs, whether voluntary or involuntary, after payment of its debts and other liabilities and making provision for any holders of its preferred stock who have a liquidation preference, Plains Exploration's remaining assets will be distributed ratably among the holders of common stock.

Fully paid. All shares of common stock outstanding are fully paid and nonassessable.

Other rights. Holders of Plains Exploration common stock have no redemption or conversion rights and no preemptive or other rights to subscribe for its securities.

PREFERRED STOCK

Plains Exploration's board of directors has the authority to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions thereof, including dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rates, voting rights, terms of redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any series or the designation of that series, which may be superior to those of the common stock, without further vote or action by the stockholders. As of the date of this prospectus, there are no outstanding shares of preferred stock.

One of the effects of undesignated preferred stock may be to enable Plains Exploration's board of directors to render more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of Plains Exploration by means of a tender offer, proxy contest, merger or otherwise, and as a result to protect the continuity of its management. The issuance of shares of the preferred stock by Plains Exploration's board of directors as described above may adversely affect the rights of the holders of common stock. For example, preferred stock issued by Plains Exploration may rank superior to the common stock as to dividend rights, liquidation preference or both, may have full or limited voting rights and may be convertible into shares of common stock. Accordingly, the issuance of shares of preferred stock may discourage bids for Plains Exploration common stock or may otherwise adversely affect the market price of Plains Exploration common stock.

DELAWARE ANTI-TAKEOVER LAW AND CERTAIN CHARTER AND BYLAW PROVISIONS

Plains Exploration's certificate of incorporation, bylaws and the Delaware General Corporation Law, or "DGCL" contain certain provisions that could discourage potential takeover attempts and make it more difficult for Plains Exploration stockholders to change management or receive a premium for their shares.

Delaware law. Plains Exploration is subject to Section 203 of the DGCL, an anti-takeover law. In general, the statute prohibits a publicly-held Delaware corporation from engaging in a business combination with an "interested stockholder" for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder. A "business combination" includes a merger, sale of 10% or more of Plains Exploration's assets and certain other transactions resulting in a financial benefit to the stockholder. For purposes of Section 203, an "interested stockholder" is defined to include any person that is:

the owner of 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation;

an affiliate or associate of the corporation and was the owner of 15% or more of the voting stock outstanding of the corporation, at any time within three years immediately prior to the relevant date; and

an affiliate or associate of the persons described in the foregoing bullet points.

However, the above provisions of Section 203 do not apply if:

Plains Exploration's board approves the transaction that made the stockholder an interested stockholder prior to the date of that transaction;

after the completion of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, that stockholder owned at least 85% of Plains Exploration's voting stock outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding shares owned by Plains Exploration's officers and directors; or

on or subsequent to the date of the transaction, the business combinations approved by Plains Exploration's board and authorized at a meeting of its stockholders by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock not owned by the interested stockholder.

Stockholders may, by adopting an amendment to the corporation's certificate of incorporation or bylaws, elect for the corporation not to be governed by Section 203, effective 12 months after adoption. Neither Plains Exploration's certificate of incorporation nor its bylaws exempt it from the restrictions imposed under Section 203. It is anticipated that the provisions of Section 203 may encourage companies interested in acquiring Plains Exploration to negotiate in advance with Plains Exploration's board.

Charter and bylaw provisions. Plains Exploration's certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that any action required or permitted to be taken by its stockholders may only be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of the stockholders, and may not be taken by written consent of the stockholders unless Plains Exploration's board of directors approves the taking of the action by written consent. If the board of directors authorizes Plains Exploration's stockholders to take action by written consent, then the stockholders may take action by written consent if stockholders having not less than the minimum number of votes necessary to take the action sign the consent. Special meetings of stockholders may be called by Plains Exploration's chairman, chief executive officer or by a majority of the board.

Directors may be removed with the approval of the holders of a majority of the shares then entitled to vote at an election of directors. Stockholders with or without cause may remove directors. Vacancies and newly-created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors may be filled by a majority of the directors then in office, though less than a quorum. If there are no directors in office, then an election of directors may be held in the manner provided by law.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY; INDEMNIFICATION

Plains Exploration's certificate of incorporation contains certain provisions permitted under the DGCL relating to the liability of directors. These provisions eliminate a director's personal liability for monetary damages resulting from a breach of fiduciary duty, except that a director will be personally liable:

for any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to Plains Exploration or Plains Exploration's stockholders;

for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

under Section 174 of the DGCL relating to unlawful stock repurchases or dividends; and

for any transaction from which the director derives an improper personal benefit.

These provisions do not limit or eliminate Plains Exploration's rights or those of any stockholder to seek non-monetary relief, such as an injunction or rescission, in the event of a breach of a director's fiduciary duty. These provisions will not alter a director's liability under federal securities laws.

Plains Exploration's certificate of incorporation and bylaws also provide that Plains Exploration must indemnify its directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law and also provide that it must advance expenses, as incurred, to its directors and officers in connection with a legal proceeding to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, subject to very limited exceptions.

STOCK EXCHANGE

Plains Exploration common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "PXP."

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The Transfer Agent and Registrar for Plains Exploration common stock is American Stock Transfer and Trust Company. Its phone number is 1-800-937-5449.

DESCRIPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES OF PLAINS EXPLORATION

GENERAL

Plains Exploration may offer fractional shares of preferred stock, rather than full shares of preferred stock. If Plains Exploration decides to offer fractional shares of preferred stock, Plains Exploration will issue receipts for depositary shares. Each depositary share will represent a fraction of a share of a particular series of preferred stock. A prospectus supplement will indicate that fraction. The shares of preferred stock represented by depositary shares will be deposited under a deposit agreement between Plains Exploration and a depositary that is a bank or trust company that meets certain requirements and is selected by Plains Exploration. Each owner of a depositary share will be entitled to all of the rights and preferences of the preferred stock represented by the depositary share. The depositary shares will be evidenced by depositary receipts issued pursuant to the deposit agreement. Depositary receipts will be distributed to those persons purchasing the fractional shares of preferred stock in accordance with the terms of the offering.

We have summarized all material provisions of the deposit agreement and the depositary receipts. The forms of the deposit agreement and the depositary receipts relating to any particular issue of depositary shares will be filed with the SEC on a Current Report on Form 8-K prior to Plains Exploration's offering of the depositary shares, and you should read such documents for provisions that may be important to you.

DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS

If Plains Exploration pays a cash distribution or dividend on a series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares, the depositary will distribute such dividends to the record holders of such depositary shares. If the distributions are in property other than cash, the depositary will distribute the property to the record holders of the depositary shares. If, however, the depositary determines that it is not feasible to make the distribution of property, the depositary may, with Plains Exploration's approval, sell such property and distribute the net proceeds from such sale to the holders of the preferred stock.

REDEMPTION OF DEPOSITARY SHARES

If Plains Exploration redeems a series of preferred stock represented by depositary shares, the depositary will redeem the depositary shares from the proceeds received by the depositary in connection with the redemption. The redemption price per depositary share will equal the applicable fraction of the redemption price per share of the preferred stock. If fewer than all the depositary shares are redeemed, the depositary shares to be redeemed will be selected by lot or pro rata as the depositary may determine.

VOTING THE PREFERRED STOCK

Upon receipt of notice of any meeting at which the holders of the preferred stock represented by depositary shares are entitled to vote, the depositary will mail the notice to the record holders of the depositary shares relating to such preferred stock. Each record holder of these depositary shares on the record date, which will be the same date as the record date for the preferred stock, may instruct the depositary as to how to vote the preferred stock represented by such holder's depositary shares. The depositary will endeavor, insofar as practicable, to vote the amount of the preferred stock represented by such depositary shares in accordance with such instructions, and Plains Exploration will take all action that the depositary deems necessary in order to enable the depositary to do so. The depositary will abstain from voting shares of the preferred stock to the extent it does not receive specific instructions from the holders of depositary shares representing such preferred stock.

AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION OF THE DEPOSITARY AGREEMENT

The form of depositary receipt evidencing the depositary shares and any provision of the deposit agreement may be amended by agreement between the depositary and Plains Exploration. Any amendment that materially

and adversely alters the rights of the holders of depositary shares will not, however, be effective unless such amendment has been approved by the holders of at least a majority of the depositary shares then outstanding. The deposit agreement may be terminated by the depositary or Plains Exploration only if (a) all outstanding depositary shares have been redeemed or (b) there has been a final distribution in respect of the preferred stock in connection with any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Plains Exploration and such distribution has been distributed to the holders of depositary receipts.

CHARGES OF DEPOSITARY

Plains Exploration will pay all transfer and other taxes and governmental charges arising solely from the existence of the depositary arrangements. Plains Exploration will pay charges of the depositary in connection with the initial deposit of the preferred stock and any redemption of the preferred stock. Holders of depositary receipts will pay other transfer and other taxes and governmental charges and any other charges, including a fee for the withdrawal of shares of preferred stock upon surrender of depositary receipts, as are expressly provided in the deposit agreement to be for their accounts.

WITHDRAWAL OF PREFERRED STOCK

Upon surrender of depositary receipts at the principal office of the depositary, subject to the terms of the deposit agreement, the owner of the depositary shares may demand delivery of the number of whole shares of preferred stock and all money and other property, if any, represented by those depositary shares. Partial shares of preferred stock will not be issued. If the depositary receipts delivered by the holder evidence a number of depositary shares in excess of the number of depositary shares representing the number of whole shares of preferred stock to be withdrawn, the depositary will deliver to such holder at the same time a new depositary receipt evidencing the excess number of depositary shares. Holders of preferred stock thus withdrawn may not thereafter deposit those shares under the deposit agreement or receive depositary receipts evidencing depositary shares therefor.

MISCELLANEOUS

The depositary will forward to holders of depositary receipts all reports and communications from Plains Exploration that are delivered to the depositary and that Plains Exploration is required to furnish to the holders of the preferred stock.

Neither Plains Exploration nor the depositary will be liable if Plains Exploration is prevented or delayed by law or any circumstance beyond its control in performing its obligations under the deposit agreement. The obligations of the depositary and Plains Exploration under the deposit agreement will be limited to performance in good faith of their duties thereunder, and Plains Exploration will not be obligated to prosecute or defend any legal proceeding in respect of any depositary shares or preferred stock unless satisfactory indemnity is furnished. Plains Exploration may rely upon written advice of counsel or accountants, or upon information provided by persons presenting preferred stock for deposit, holders of depositary receipts or other persons believed to be competent and on documents believed to be genuine.

RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL OF DEPOSITARY

The depositary may resign at any time by delivering notice to Plains Exploration of its election to do so, and Plains Exploration may at any time remove the depositary. Any such resignation or removal will take effect upon the appointment of a successor depositary and its acceptance of such appointment. Such successor depositary must be appointed within 60 days after delivery of the notice of resignation or removal and must be a bank or trust company having its principal office in the United States and having a combined capital and surplus of at least \$100,000,000.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES WARRANTS OF PLAINS EXPLORATION

Plains Exploration may issue securities warrants for the purchase of debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares, common stock or other securities. Securities warrants may be issued independently or together with debt securities, preferred stock, depositary shares, common stock or other securities offered by any prospectus supplement and may be attached to or separate from any such offered securities. Each series of securities warrants will be issued under a separate warrant agreement to be entered into between Plains Exploration and a bank or trust company, as warrant agent, all as set forth in a prospectus supplement relating to the particular issue of securities warrants. The securities warrant agent will act solely as Plains Exploration's agent in connection with the securities warrants and will not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or trust for or with any holders of securities warrants or beneficial owners of securities warrants.

We have summarized all material provisions of the securities warrant agreements. A form of the applicable securities warrant agreement will be filed with the SEC on Form 8-K prior to any offering of the applicable warrants, and you should read such document for provisions that may be important to you. A prospectus supplement relating to a particular issue of securities warrants will contain the terms of and information relating to that issue of securities warrants, including, where applicable:

the designation, aggregate principal amount, currencies, denominations and terms of the series of debt securities purchasable upon exercise of securities warrants to purchase debt securities and the price at which such debt securities may be purchased upon such exercise;

the number of shares of common stock purchasable upon the exercise of securities warrants to purchase common stock and the price at which such number of shares of common stock may be purchased upon such exercise;

the number of shares and series of preferred stock or depositary shares purchasable upon the exercise of securities warrants to purchase preferred stock or depositary shares and the price at which such number of shares of such series of preferred stock or depositary shares may be purchased upon such exercise;

the designation and number of units of other securities purchasable upon the exercise of securities warrants to purchase other securities and the price at which such number of units of such other securities may be purchased upon such exercise;

the date on which the right to exercise such securities warrants shall commence and the date on which such right shall expire;

United States federal income tax consequences applicable to such securities warrants;

the amount of securities warrants outstanding as of the most recent practicable date; and

any other terms of such securities warrants.

Securities warrants will be issued in registered form only. The exercise price for securities warrants will be subject to adjustment in accordance with a prospectus supplement relating to the particular issue of securities warranties.

Each securities warrant will entitle the holder thereof to purchase such principal amount of debt securities or such number of shares of common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares or other securities at such exercise price as shall in each case be set forth in, or calculable from, a prospectus supplement relating to the securities warrants, which exercise price may be subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events as set forth in such prospectus supplement. After the close of business on the expiration date, or such later date to which such expiration date may be extended by Plains Exploration, unexercised securities warrants will become void. The place or places where, and the manner in which, securities warrants may be exercised shall be specified in a prospectus supplement relating to such securities warrants.

Prior to the exercise of any securities warrants to purchase debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares or other securities, holders of such securities warrants will not have any of the rights of holders

of debt securities, common stock, preferred stock, depositary shares or other securities, as the case may be, purchasable upon such exercise, including the right to receive payments of principal of, premium, if any, or interest, if any, on the debt securities purchasable upon such exercise or to enforce covenants in any applicable indenture, or to receive payments of dividends, if any, on the common stock, preferred stock or depositary shares purchasable upon such exercise, or to exercise any applicable right to vote.

DESCRIPTION OF STOCK PURCHASE CONTRACTS AND STOCK PURCHASE UNITS OF PLAINS EXPLORATION

Plains Exploration may issue stock purchase contracts, including contracts obligating holders to purchase from Plains Exploration, and obligating Plains Exploration to sell to holders, a specified number of shares of common stock or other securities at a future date or dates, which we refer to in this prospectus as "stock purchase contracts." The price per share of the securities and the number of shares of the securities may be fixed at the time the stock purchase contracts are issued or may be determined by reference to a specific formula set forth in the stock purchase contracts. The stock purchase contracts may be issued separately or as part of units consisting of a stock purchase contract and debt securities, preferred securities, warrants or debt obligations of third parties, including U.S. treasury securities, securing the holders' obligations to purchase the securities under the stock purchase contracts, which we refer to herein as "stock purchase units." The stock purchase contracts may require holders to secure their obligations under the stock purchase contracts in a specified manner. The stock purchase contracts also may require Plains Exploration to make periodic payments to the holders of the stock purchase units or vice versa, and those payments may be unsecured or refunded on some basis.

The applicable prospectus supplement will describe the terms of the stock purchase contracts or stock purchase units and, if applicable, collateral or depositary arrangements relating to the stock purchase contracts or stock purchase units. In addition, the applicable prospectus supplement will set forth:

the names of the selling stockholders;

the number of shares of common stock held by each of the selling stockholders:

the percentage of the outstanding common stock held by each of the selling stockholders; and

the number of shares of common stock offered by each of the selling stockholders.

Material United States federal income tax considerations applicable to the stock purchase units and the stock purchase contracts will also be discussed in the applicable prospectus supplement.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Any of the securities that we may offer under this prospectus may be sold in or outside the United States through underwriters or dealers, agents or directly to one or more purchasers, including Plains Exploration's existing stockholders in a rights offering. The prospectus supplement relating to the securities offered by this prospectus will include, to the extent required, the following information:

the terms of the offering;

the names of any underwriters, dealers or agents;

the name or names of any managing underwriter or underwriters;

the purchase price of the securities offered by this prospectus:

the net proceeds to us from the sale of the securities;

any delayed delivery arrangements;

any underwriting discounts, commissions and other items constituting underwriters' compensation;

any initial public offering price;

any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers;

any commissions paid to agents; and

Any securities exchange on which the securities offered by this prospectus may be listed.

If we use underwriters in the sale, the underwriters will acquire the securities for their own account. The underwriters may resell the securities from time to time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at a fixed public offering price or at varying prices determined at the time of sale. Underwriters may offer securities to the public either through underwriting syndicates represented by one or more managing underwriters or directly by one or more firms acting as underwriters. Unless we inform you otherwise in the prospectus supplement, the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the securities will be subject to certain conditions, and the underwriters will be obligated to purchase all the offered securities if they purchase any of them. The underwriters may change, from time to time, any initial public offering price and any discounts or concessions allowed or reallowed or paid to dealers.

If we use dealers in the sale of securities, the securities will be sold directly to them as principals. They may then resell those securities to the public at varying prices determined by the dealers at the time of resale.

We may sell the securities directly. In this case, no underwriters or agents would be involved. Plains Exploration may sell securities upon the exercise of rights that Plains Exploration may issue to its security holders. We may sell the securities directly to institutional investors or others who may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act with respect to any sale of those securities.

We may sell the securities through agents we designate from time to time. Unless we inform you otherwise in the prospectus supplement, any agent will agree to use its reasonable best efforts to solicit purchases for the period of its appointment.

If we so indicate in the prospectus supplement, we may authorize agents, underwriters or dealers to solicit offers from certain types of institutions to purchase securities from us, at the public offering price under delayed delivery contracts. These contracts would provide for payment and delivery on a specified date in the future. The contracts would be subject only to those conditions described in the prospectus supplement. The prospectus supplement will describe the commission payable for solicitation of those contracts.

We may have agreements with the agents, dealers and underwriters to indemnify them against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute with respect to payments that the agents, dealers or underwriters may be required to make. Agents, dealers and underwriters may be customers of, engage in transactions with or perform services for us in the ordinary course of their business.

LEGAL MATTERS

Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP has acted as our counsel in connection with this offering and has issued a preliminary opinion regarding the validity of the issuance of the securities offered by this prospectus. Legal counsel to any underwriters may pass upon legal matters for such underwriters.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements and management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting (which is included in Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting) incorporated in this Prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Plains Exploration & Production Company for the year ended December 31, 2004 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The consolidated financial statements and related schedule of Nuevo Energy Company as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, have been incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon the report dated March 5, 2004 of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing. The audit report dated March 5, 2004 contains an explanatory paragraph that states that Nuevo changed its method of accounting for derivative instruments effective January 1, 2001, its method of accounting for asset retirement obligations effective January 1, 2003, and its method of accounting for certain convertible subordinated debentures effective December 31, 2003.

The consolidated financial statements of 3TEC Energy Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, have been incorporated by reference herein in reliance upon the report dated February 14, 2003 of KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, incorporated by reference herein, and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing. The audit report dated February 14, 2003 refers to a change in the method of accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities effective January 1, 2001.

Certain information with respect to the oil and gas reserves associated with Plains Exploration's oil and gas properties is derived from the reports of Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. and Ryder Scott Company, L.P., independent petroleum consulting firms, and has been included in this prospectus upon the authority of said firms as experts with respect to the matters covered by such reports and in giving such reports.

Certain information with respect to the oil and gas reserves associated with 3TEC Energy Corporation's and Nuevo Energy Company's oil and gas properties is derived from the reports of Ryder Scott Company, L.P., an independent petroleum consulting firm, and has been included in this prospectus upon the authority of said firm as experts with respect to the matters covered by such reports and in giving such reports.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Each time we offer to sell securities we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of that offering, including any guarantees. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. This prospectus, together with the applicable prospectus supplement, will include or refer you to all material information relating to each offering.

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC (File No. 001-31470). Plains Exploration's SEC filings are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC's web site at http://www.sec.gov and at our web site at http://www.plainsxp.com. You may also read and copy at prescribed rates any document Plains Exploration files at the SEC's public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain information on the operation of the SEC's public reference room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Plains Exploration's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "PXP." Our reports, proxy statements and other information may be read and copied at the NYSE at 20 Broad Street, 7th Floor, New York, New York 10005.

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information Plains Exploration files with them, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to other documents. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus, and information that Plains Exploration files later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information. We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and all documents Plains Exploration subsequently files with the SEC under Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (other than information furnished rather than filed) until we sell all of the securities described in this prospectus or we terminate this offering:

our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004;

our current reports on Form 8-K (other than information furnished rather than filed), filed with the SEC on January 4, 2005, January 14, 2005, February 24, 2005, March 1, 2005, March 7, 2005, March 15, 2005, April 4, 2005 and April 15, 2005;

the audited financial statements of 3TEC Energy Corporation included in our registration statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-108407) filed with the SEC on August 29, 2003;

the audited financial statements of Nuevo Energy Company included in our current report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 17, 2004; and

the description of Plains Exploration's common stock contained in our Form 10 registration statement filed with the SEC on November 8, 2002, as amended by Amendment No. 1 filed November 21, 2002, Amendment No. 2 filed December 3, 2002, and Amendment No. 3 filed December 6, 2002.

You may request a copy of these filings (other than an exhibit to a filing unless that exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference into that filing), at no cost, by writing to us at the following address or calling the following number:

Plains Exploration & Production Company
Attention: Corporate Secretary
700 Milam, Suite 3100
Houston, Texas 77002
(713) 579-6000

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement. We have not authorized any dealer, salesman or other person to provide you with additional or different information. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement or in any document incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement is accurate as of any date other than the date of the document containing the information.